
 
 
 

 
 
 

      
   6 November 2007 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

will meet on 
Wednesday, 14 November 2007 

beginning at 
2:00 pm 

in 
Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh 

 
TO: Councillors Airey, Millar and Pepper 
 County Councillors Mrs Boulton, Broadhurst and Davidovitz 
 Mr Egleston, Mr Jackson & Mrs Sutton, Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust 
 Peter James, County Museums Service 
 Jo Lawler, County Museums Service 
 Gavin Bowie, Curator, Bursledon Windmill 
 Martin Coulson, Area Co-ordinator 
 Wendy Tuppenney, Area Co-ordinator 
 Councillor A Madsen, Bursledon Parish Council 
 
Staff Contact: Julia Roy, Democratic Services Officer  

Tel: 023 8068 8133;  
Email: julia.roy@eastleigh.gov.uk  

   
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
3. Bursledon Windmill - Progress Report    (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
4. Revenue Budget Estimate 2008/09    (Pages 9 - 12) 
 
5. Date and Venue of Next Meeting     
 
 

Civic Offices, Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh  SO50 9YN 

 
 
2000/01 
Community Safety Preventing Crime and  Disorder 
2002/03 
Fostering Business Growth 



 



1 

BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 13 June 2007  (2:00 pm – 3:00 pm) 
 

The meeting was held in the Committee Room, Civic Offices, Eastleigh 
 
PRESENT: 

 
Representing Eastleigh Borough Council - Councillors Airey, Millar and 
Pepper 
 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors Broadhurst and  
Davidovitz 
 

 Peter James - County Museums and Archives Service
 Jo Lawler - County Museums and Archives Service
 Mr Jackson - Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
 Mrs Sutton (until 2.30 pm) - Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust 
 Wendy Tuppenney - Area Co-ordinator 

 
Apologies for absence were received from County Councillor Mrs Boulton, 
Gavin Bowie (Curator) and Mr Egleston (Hampshire Buildings Preservation 
Trust) 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN 
 
 RESOLVED –  

 
That County Councillor Broadhurst be appointed Chairman of the 
Committee for the year 2007/08.  

 
2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 
 
 RESOLVED –  

 
That Councillor Airey be appointed Vice-Chairman of the Committee for the 
year 2007/08. 

 
3. LETTER FROM MR BROWN 
 
 Councillor Airey reported that he had received a reply from Mr Roger Brown, 

formerly a representative of the Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust on 
the Committee.  As Chairman, Councillor Airey had sent a letter on behalf of 
the Committee following Mr Brown’s retirement from the Committee.  Mr 
Brown thanked the Committee for their good wishes on his retirement and 
said that it had been a pleasure to work with both Eastleigh and County 
members and officers over the years.  He also wished the Committee 
increasing success and a harmonious future. 

 

Agenda Item 2

1



4. UPDATE ON THE CURATOR'S RECOVERY 
 
 The Head of Operations, Museums and Archives Service, reported on the 

progress being made by the Curator following the accident sustained to his 
hand at the Windmill the previous autumn.   
 
The Curator was well, and was making a remarkable recovery.  He had 
returned to work at the beginning of June and, although full flexibility had not 
yet returned to his hand, was carrying out light duties. 
  
The Committee was pleased to hear the news and wished the Curator 
success and continued health. 

 
5. MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 18 October 2006 were agreed as a 

correct record, subject to it being confirmed that “concessions” in paragraph 
7 of Item 4 (Curator’s Report) referred to senior citizens. 
 
Matters arising: 
 
Curator’s Report 
 
(a) Paragraph 4 – The Head of Operations reported that the insurance 

renewal had been carried out smoothly with NFU Mutual in 
November 2006.  A site assessment had also been undertaken as 
part of the process and two improvements made.  Councillor 
Broadhurst confirmed that he had received a satisfactory response 
from the County Council to his query concerning electrical checks. 

 
(b) Paragraph 5 and Resolution 3 – Councillor Airey, Chair of Bursledon, 

Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area Committee, confirmed that the 
owners had been approached with regard to the possible coppicing of 
the trees behind the Windmill, but that they had declined permission.  
Councillor Broadhurst, as Portfolio Lead, reiterated this response, 
reporting that he had liaised with Borough Countryside and 
Recreation staff, who had confirmed that the trees were managed 
within good arboricultural practice. 

 
Revenue Budget: 
 
(a) The Head of Operations reported that Bursledon Parish Council had 

agreed to grant a one-off payment to cover the increase required in 
the budget estimate for 2007/08. 

 
(b) It was queried how the closure of the Windmill for six months would 

affect the 2008/09 budget.  The Head of Operations replied that both 
visitor figures and income would be down, but that costs had been 
accrued during this period, such as visits to the site for Health and 
Safety checks.  The budget for the forthcoming year would be 

2



3 

presented at the November meeting of the Committee, and as much 
information as possible would be provided, in order that an informed 
judgment could be made. 

 
6. BURSLEDON WINDMILL - PLANS FOR RE-OPENING 
 
 The Head of Operations firstly introduced Jo Lawler, who had taken up her 

post as Visitor Services Manager at the Windmill on 1 June.  Jo had worked 
with the Museums Service for many years.  He then introduced a report of 
the Director, County Museums and Archives Service, which outlined the 
new arrangements that the Museums Service was to put into effect for the 
future efficient and safe running of the Windmill. 
 
Following the Curator’s accident, the site had been closed whilst an 
Accident Investigation and actions arising out of it had been carried out.  
The Accident Report had called for a thorough review of the safety 
measures, staffing, maintenance and operation of the Windmill site, which 
had now been completed.  The target date for the re-opening of the site was 
14 July. 
 
Although it was envisaged that a “soft” launch would accompany the re-
opening, the Committee suggested that a high profile official opening should 
take place later in the year, around late September/early October, with a 
well-known figure to perform the opening ceremony and the Mayor of 
Eastleigh in attendance.  In addition, it was hoped that local schools could 
take part in the event.  
 
At the previous meeting of the Committee, a plan to review and improve 
staffing arrangements at the Windmill had been approved.  The report 
proposed a new structure, comprising a team of four members of staff, 
which provided a blend of skills and experience and was affordable within 
the allocated budget for 2007/08.  Volunteers and casual labour would 
continue to be used to supplement the team when required.  The new 
staffing structure would enable the site to be open at fixed, advertised 
opening hours, which had not previously been possible.    
 
Working closely with the Museums Service Learning, Access and 
Interpretation (LAI) team, new interpretive materials would be researched 
and produced and new learning programmes for schools and families 
devised.  The report contained some initial ideas from Ruth Kerr, Senior 
Education Officer in the LAI team, who envisaged the offering of a menu of 
sessions of differing lengths, from which schools could choose.  It was 
suggested that meetings with teachers responsible for science and 
geography be arranged at the Windmill to enable them to see the 
opportunities available.   
 
The Committee particularly endorsed her suggestion that the family ticket be 
extended, allowing “2 adults and up to 4 children and/or concessions” to 
allow for the inclusion of grandparents.  A report on how these proposals for 
education were being implemented was requested for the next meeting. 

3



 
Opportunities for increasing income and advertising were to be investigated 
with the aid of the County Council’s internal retail consultant.  It was 
suggested, for example, that Eastleigh Museum could play an active part in 
promoting the Windmill.  It was also reported that a local summer fair was to 
be held in Bursledon, at which the Windmill could be advertised.  An offer of 
sponsorship would also be pursued.   
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(1) That the plans outlined in the report be approved; 
 
(2) That a report on the implementation of  proposals for education at the 

Windmill be brought to the next meeting of the Committee; and 
 
(3) That investigation be undertaken into the suggestion of the Senior 

Education Officer to extend the family ticket for the Windmill to “2 
adults and up to 4 children and/or concessions”, in order that 
grandparents might be included.   

 
7. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 It was agreed that the next meeting should be held at the Civic Offices in 

November 2007.  Date to be agreed. 
 
(NOTE: Subsequent to the meeting, the next meeting has been arranged at 
2pm on Wednesday 14 November, at the Civic Offices, Eastleigh Borough 
Council.) 

 
M3620 
 

4



 1

BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
14 November 2007 
 
 BURSLEDON WINDMILL – PROGRESS REPORT 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR COUNTY MUSEUMS AND ARCHIVES 
SERVICE 
 
Contact: Peter James, Head of Operations, Museums & Archives Service.  01962 
826700 
 
 
 
1. Introduction 
 

At the last meeting of the  Joint Management Committee, on 13 June, I gave a 
report outlining the new arrangements that  the Museums Service will put into 
effect for the future efficient and safe running of the Windmill, and plans for 
re-opening the site to the public.  

 
 I am pleased to report to the Committee that the windmill opened again on 

Sunday 15th July. 
 

As Members will know, an official celebration of the re-opening was held at 
the mill on Saturday 29th September.   
 
We hope to resume milling shortly. 

 
 
 
2.  Staffing  
   

In line with the plan approved by the Committee in June the new site staffing 
structure has been implemented.  The staff and their normal work patterns 
currently are: 

  
 Gavin Bowie, Curator, part-time: Tues,Wed, Thurs  
 
 Jo Lawler, Visitor Services Manager, part-time: Sun, Mon , Tues,Wed 
 

Gary Freeman, Museums Assistant (new post from July),  part-time: Sun, 
Tues,Wed 

 
 Wendy Stevenson, Museums Assistant, part-time: Sun   
  
 Volunteers and casual labour will continue to be used to supplement the team 

when required.   

Agenda Item 3

5



 2

 
3.  Opening Hours   
  

Sunday and Bank Holiday Mondays (except Christmas and New Year): 
10am to 4pm 
Tuesday and Wednesday by arrangement. School groups will be given 
priority. 

  
 A consequence of having fixed opening hours is that visitors may not see the 

sails turning, or milling in progress, because of course these are dependent on 
wind conditions.  This is made clear to visitors on the Windmill website 
(http://www3.hants.gov.uk/windmill) and other publicity material.  

 
   
 
4.  Interpretation and Education  
  
 Gavin has been working with Ruth Kerr  and other members of the Museums 

Service ‘Learning, Access and Interpretation ‘ (LAI) team  to devise an  
education programme.  

 
Currently under development is a session based called ‘Wind’ which could be 
adapted for Key Stages1 or 2 and is a cross-curricular series of activities: 

 
 

‘Wind’ 
 

• A 2-hour session for one class  
For KS1 or KS2 
 

• 10 minute introduction 
 

• Class divides into 5 groups and rotate around 5 20-minute activities: 
 

• Windmill – a visit to the Windmill to find out the basics of how the windmill 
works 

 
• Grinding Corn – in the barn, finding out about other methods of making flour 

 
• Wind Art – blow/spray painting for KS1; rotating patterns for KS2 

Make & Take – make a windsock for KS1; make a windgauge for KS2 
 
 

• Literacy – group poems (gentle breeze – fill the shape of a butterfly with 
descriptive words; wild wind – fill the shape of a bare tree with descriptive 
words) 

 
• 10 minute plenary 

 

6



 3

 
    
 
5.     Income Generation 
  

Opportunities for increasing income have been  investigated with the aid of 
HCC’s internal retail consultant, Penny Ward.  Examples of areas where 
performance might be improved are sales of specially-designed souvenirs and 
other products appropriate to the site. The possibility of providing 
refreshments is also being explored (eg. with a tea/coffee machine) although 
the site’s toilet and washing up facilities are a limiting factor.  Increasing 
income will be one of the main priorities for the coming year.   

 
 
6.  Health & Safety  
 

There has been a thorough review of safety measures at the site, conducted by 
the R&H Risk & Safety Manager and in consultation with Windmill staff. 
Expert advice has also been provided by the Society for the Protection of 
Ancient Buildings, Mills Division.  A recent inspection by Hampshire Fire & 
Rescue Service also called for some additional measures to be taken, eg. 
further limiting the number of people of allowed on the upper floors of the 
windmill at any one time, and a minimum height restriction inside the mill of 
1.2m for all visitors.  
 
All improvements have now been implemented.  

 
7.    Maintenance 
 

Ian Clarke, a leading expert on mill maintenance, was commissioned to give 
the mill a top-to toe inspection, provide a report, and propose a maintenance 
schedule for this future.  It is pleasing to note that no major problems were 
found, and that the report noted that the windmill had been “maintained with 
care and appreciation”. 
 
Another expert was commissioned to check the condition of the sails, and 
again no serious defects were found.   

 

7



 4

 
8. Visitors 

 
July   273  
August  413  
September 314  
October   227  

The following groups and schools have visited:  

Portchester Civic Society  
9th Southampton Scouts  
A Probus Group  
Bursledon Junior School  
Southampton Home Learning Group  
St Francis Special School  
Lewis School of English  
An Art Group  
Also bookings from a couple of families for weekday visits.  
 

 
 
 
9.  Recommendation 
 

That the Joint Management Committee notes this report.  
 
  

 
   
 
 

 
 
 
 
  

8



 1

BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
14 NOVEMBER  2007 
 
REVENUE BUDGET ESTIMATE  2008-09 
 
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF HAMPSHIRE COUNTY MUSEUMS AND 
ARCHIVES SERVICE 
 
Contact: Peter James  01962 826700 
 
 
 
1. Introduction 
  
1.1 In accordance with the agreement between Hampshire County Council and 

Eastleigh Borough Council the net cost of running Bursledon Windmill is 
shared between the two partner authorities.  

 
1.2 This report outlines progress with the current year’s budget and also deals with 

the forward estimate for 2008-09. 
 
 
2. Revenue budget 2006/07 
 
2.1 After its meeting on 18 October 2006  the Committee agreed to recommend a 

cash limit for the current year of £63,600  (£31,800 per partner).  This took 
into account estimates for inflation of 4.2% for pay and 2.5% for other prices.  

 
 
2.2 At a subsequent meeting of the Local Area Committee for Bursledon, Hamble 

and Hound the JMC’s recommendation was not accepted and it was decided 
that Eastleigh Borough Council’s contribution for the year would be £29,850, 
a reduction of £1,950 on the sum requested.  Bursledon Parish Council later 
made up that shortfall. 

 
 
2.3 Monitoring of the budget at this stage of the year indicates that it will be 

possible to manage within the agreed cash limit. 
 
 
3. Revenue Budget 2008 - 09 
 
3.1 So that the two contributing partners can make provision in their 2008-09 

budget planning process it is necessary for the Joint Management Committee 
to agree to recommend a forward budget now. 

 
 
3.2  Following the format introduced and agreed last year the revenue estimate 

includes an element to pay for the use Bursledon Windmill makes of Central 

Agenda Item 4

9



 2

Support Services provided by the Museums Service’s HQ in Winchester. 
Specialist services and resources supplied centrally include marketing, design 
& exhibitions, conservation, subject specialists, education and interpretation, 
collections management, storage, and workshops.  Bursledon Windmill’s 
requirement from next year’s estimated c. £1.13m Central Services’ budget is 
calculated, as last year, at 0.3% (£3,400)   

 
 

 
3.3 The table below shows the breakdown of estimated costs next year.  The 

estimate for 2008-09 is £68,600 which is an increase of £5,000 on the 2007-08 
budget.    Each partner will be required to contribute £34,300.  This increase is 
largely due to increased staff costs, arising out of restructuring, plus an 
anticipated 2.0% increase for inflation on salaries, and 2.5 % on other costs. 
The County Council believes it is an accurate assessment of the windmill’s 
needs for the coming year.    

 
3.4 This is a cash limit and the budget will be managed within this figure.  No 

further inflation allocation will be made during the year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 3

Bursledon Windmill:  Revenue Budget estimate for 2008-09 
 

 
 
 

 
2006-07  
Out-turn 

2007-08 
budget 

07-08 actual 
to 30/09 

2008-09 
estimates 

 £ £ £ £ 
Employees     

     
Curator 32,000  26,300
Visitor Services 
Manager  20,000

 
22,300

Museums Assistants 6,000  18,200
Casual staff 3,000  1,000
     
Total Salaries 61,988 61,000 27,140 67,800 
     
Premises 4,872 6,000 2,277 5,100 
     
Transport 2,025 2,100 298 2,000 
     
Supplies & Services 2,607 3,900 817 3,000 
     
Central Museum  
Support Services  

 
3,600 3,300 

 
1,650 

 
3,400 

     
 
Total Expenditure 

 
75,092 76,300 

 
32,180 

 
81,300 

     

Income 

 
 
8,451 12,700  

 
 
1,115 

 
 
12,700 

     
Net Expenditure 66,641 63,600 31,065 68,600 
minus  Bursledon P.C. 
grant 

 
1,950 

  

  61,650   
     
Contributions     
     
Hampshire  
County Council 

 
31,800 

  
34,300 

     
Eastleigh  
Borough Council 

 
29,850 

  
34,300 

[     

11



 4

 
 
4. Recommendation 
 
4.1 That the budget required to maintain the current levels of service be noted and 

approved and that the constituent authorities be notified of the required 
contributions. 

 

12


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Bursledon Windmill - Progress Report
	4 Revenue Budget Estimate 2008/09

